
Meeting URL  https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368 
 

 

BOARD 
BOOK 

June 6, 2022 
 
 

 

 

https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368


Board Book Page 1 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As permitted by Governor Pritzker’s Executive Orders 2020Ǧ 07, 2020Ǧ33, and, 
2020Ǧ55 Shawnee Community College, Pulaski County, Illinois, will convene a regular 
meeting on June 6, 2022 at 5:30 PM.  Citizens can participate in person or by 
teleconference. Citizens and staff can participate in the teleconference by using the 
following link:(full URL on Title Page) or by dialing 1-312-626-6799, when prompted 
enter conference ID 119290368 and press # instead of a participant number. The 
meeting will include an opportunity for public comment. Any Citizen participating in 
the meeting via teleconference that would like to make a public comment, must submit 
their public comment via email to comments@shawneecc.edu by 2:00 p.m. on June 6, 
2022. Public comments submitted via email will be announced during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. 
 
I. Call to Order 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call  

IV. Approval of Agenda & Addendums 

V. Disposition of Minutes 
April 26, 2022, Special Board Finance Committee Meeting 
May 2, 2022, Regular Meeting 
 

VI. Recognition of Guests and Public Comment 
New Employee Introduction: Daniel Kineman (Network Support Specialist),  
 

VII. Communications 
A. Student Report – Riley Scarbrough 
B. Faculty – Dr. Ian Nicolaides 
C. President – Dr. Tim Taylor 
D. Senior Leadership 

i. Academic Affairs – Darci Cather 
ii. Administrative Services – Chris Clark 

iii. Human Resources – Emily Forthman 
iv. Institutional Effectiveness – Dr. April Teske 
v. Public Information & Marketing – Kevin Hunsperger 

vi. Saints Foundation – Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
vii. Student Affairs – Dr. Lisa Price 

E. Illinois Community College Trustees Association – James Darden

REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES DISTRICT NO. 531 

EDCUCATION CENTER, ULLIN, IL 
JUNE 6, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

https://shawneecc-edu.zoom.us/j/119290368
mailto:comments@shawneecc.edu


Board Book Page 2 

 
Return to Agenda   

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Treasurer’s Report 
B. Approval of Bills 

 
Education Fund $701,396.41 

Building Fund 125,950.63 

Restricted Bldg. Fund 9,580.47 

Bond & Interest Fund 0.00 

Auxiliary Enterprises Fund 36,384.67 

Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants) 193,911.94 

Restricted Purposes - FWS* 1,902.00 

Restricted Purposes - PELL 18,831.00 

Restricted Purposes - SEOG 0.00 

Trust & Agency Fund 3,581.12 

  

Audit Fund 0.00 

Liability. Protection Settlement Fund (TORT) 42,284.66 

Grand Total $1,133,822.90 

 
IX. Consideration for Approval of Fund Transfer 

Interfund Transfer: ($55,000.00) To an interfund loan from the Education Fund 
to the Restricted Purpose Fund () 

 
 

X. Monitoring Reports 
 

XI. Presentations, Discussion, and Action Items 
A. Budget Development Presentation 

i. Revenue Projection Model Presentation 
ii. Preliminary Division Review 
iii. Schedule Board Finance Committee Meeting 

B.  Consideration for Approval of the Capital Project Application ( 10pp)  
C.  Consideration for Approval of Blanket Purchase Orders Over $25,000 ( 2pp) 
D.  Consideration for Approval of the FY22 Audit Engagement Letter ( 13pp) 

 

XII. Board Policy Review/Approval 
 

  



Board Book Page 3 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

XIII. Executive Session 
A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or Compensation of 

Employees’ Employment pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
i. Collective Bargaining Update 

ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire an IT Support Specialist 
iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Research Associate 
iv. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Librarian 
v. Consideration for Approval of Stipend for Interim Assignment 

vi. Consideration for Approval to Ratify Spring 2022 Faculty Stipends ( 
4pp) 

vii. Consideration for Approval to Ratify Part-Time Employees  
viii. Consideration for Approval of President’s Contract  

B. Consideration of Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of 
any staff or employee of the College pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
i. Consideration for Approval of Full Time Faculty Retirement ( 1p) 
ii.  Consideration for Approval of Full Time Employee Retirement ( 1p) 

C.   Consideration of Approval Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have 
Led to Litigation pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (11) 

      i.  Consideration for Approval to Determine Continued Confidentiality of 
Executive Session Minutes ( 2pp) 

XIV. Executive Session Action Items 

A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or 
Compensation of Employees’ Employment  
i. Collective Bargaining Update 

ii. Consideration for Approval to Hire an IT Support Specialist  
iii. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Research Associate 
iv. Consideration for Approval to Hire a Librarian 
v. Consideration for Approval of Stipend for Interim Assignment 

vi. Consideration for Approval to Ratify Spring 2022 Faculty Stipends ( 
4pp) 

vii. Consideration for Approval to Ratify Part-Time Employees  
viii. Consideration for Approval of President’s Contract 

B. Consideration of Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of 
any staff or employee of the College  
i. Consideration for Approval of Full Time Faculty Retirement ( 1p) 
ii.   Consideration for Approval of Full Time Employee Retirement ( 1p) 

C. Consideration of Approval Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have 
Led to Litigation  
i.    Consideration for Approval to Determine Continued Confidentiality of 

Executive Session Minutes ( 2pp) 
 

XV. Trustee Comments 
 

XVI. Adjournment  
 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=000501200K2


Board Book Page 4 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
SCC BOARD FINANCE COMMITTEE 

FOUNDERS ROOM, SHAWNEE COLLEGE ROAD 
ULLIN, ILLINOIS 
April 26, 2022 

 
A special meeting of Shawnee Community College District No. 531 Board Finance 
Committee was held on April 26, in the Founders Room.  The meeting was called to order 
by John Windings, Chairperson. 
 
I. Call to Order 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Roll Call 
 
 The roll call was as follows: 
 Trustee   Trustee 
√ Mr. James Darden  √ Ms. April Moore 

√ Mr. John Windings    

 
 
 Others Present: 
√ Dr. Tim Taylor, President  √ Chris Clark, VP of Administrative Services 

√ Brad McCormick, Consultant    

     

 
 
IV. Recognition of Guests and Public Comment 

There were no guests or public comment.   
 
 
V. Action and Discussion Items 

A. Financial Audit Engagement Letter, Martin Hood, 5:00 pm 
B. Financial Advisor Evaluation, 5:30 pm, PMA – Tammie Schallmo 
C. Financial Advisor Evaluation, 6:30 pm, Speer Financial – Dan Forbes 
D. Financial Advisor Evaluation, 7:30 pm, Kings Financial Consulting – Tim King 
& Brent Flota 

 
 

Minutes pg 1 of 2 

 
  



Board Book Page 5 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

V. A.  Financial Audit Engagement Letter, Martin Hood 

Consensus by members to engage with Martin Hood for auditing services. 

 
 
V. B.  Financial Advisor Evaluation/PMA 

Tammie Schallmo presentation followed by questions from members. 
 
 
 
V. C.  Financial Advisor Evaluation/Speer Financial 

Dan Forbes presentation followed by questions from members. 
 
 
V. D.  Financial Advisor Evaluation/Kings Financial Consulting 

Tim King, in person, and Brent Flota, via Zoom, presentation followed by 
questions from members. 

   
 
The Board Finance Committee will present a recommendation at the May 2 Board of 
Trustees meeting. 
  
 
MOTION NO.   1 
VI.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by __________________ and seconded by ________________ to 
adjourn at _______________pm. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: 
Present Trustee  Present Trustee 

 Ms. April Moore   Mr. John Windings 

 Mr. James Darden    

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes pg 2 of 2 

 



Board Book Page 6 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES DISTRICT NO. 531 

SCC EDUCATION CENTER 
May 2, 2022, 5:30 P.M. 

 
A regular meeting of Shawnee Community College District No. 531 Board of Trustees 
was held on May 2, 2022 in the Education Center and via Zoom. The meeting was called 
to order by Chairperson Steve Heisner.   
 
I. Call to Order 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Roll Call 
 
 The roll call was as follows: 
Present Trustee  Present Trustee 

√ Mr. James Darden  √ Ms. April Moore 

√ Ms. Deborah Shelton-Yates  √ Mr. John Windings 

√ Mr. Steve Heisner  √ Ms. Andrea Witthoft 

√ Mr. Michael McMahan  √ Ms. Riley Scarbrough (Advisory 
Vote) 

 
Others Present: 

Present Others  Present Others 
√ Dr. Tim Taylor, President  √ Darci Cather, Vice President of 

Academic Affairs 
√ Dr. Lisa Price, Vice President of 

Student Affairs 
 √ Chris Clark, Vice President of 

Administrative Services 
 Dr. Greg Mason, Dean of Career & 

Technology 
 √ Dr. Kristin Shelby, Dean of Transfer 

& Adult Education 
 Amanda Hannan, Dean of Allied 

Health & Nursing 
 √ Emily Forthman, Executive Director 

of Human Resources 
√ Dr. April Teske, Executive 

Director Institutional 
Effectiveness 

 √ Kevin Hunsperger, Executive 
Director of Public Information & 
Marketing 

√ Dr. Jeffrey Dufour, Executive 
Director of Saints Foundation 

 √ John Schneider, Attorney 

√ Dr. Ian Nicolaides, S.C.E.A., 
President 

  Dr. Ryan Thornsberry, Instructor of 
English 

√ Tina Dudley, Executive Assistant, 
President & Foundation 

   

     

Minutes pg 1 of 9 
 



Board Book Page 7 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & ADDENDUMS 
 
MOTION NO.   1 
 
A motion was made by Michael McMahan and seconded by John Windings to approve 
the Agenda and Addendums as follows: 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner. 
M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft and R. Scarbrough all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
 
V.  DISPOSITION OF MINUTES – March 21, 2022  
     Special Board Meeting, Board Finance Committee 
 
MOTION NO.   2 
 
A motion was made by Deborah Shelton-Yates and seconded by Riley Scarbrough to 
approve the minutes of the March 21, 2022, Special Board Meeting/Board Finance 
Committee. 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-
Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J Windings, and A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  
The Chairperson declared the motion carried. 

 
 

DISPOSITION OF MINUTES – April 4, 2022  
Regular Board Meeting 
 
 
 
MOTION NO.             3 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
approve the minutes of the April 4, 2022, Regular Board Meeting. 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  A. Witthoft, R Scarbrough, J. Darden, 
D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore and J. Windings all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
VI.     RECOGNITION OF GUESTS AND PUBLIC COMMENT   

New Employee Introduction:  Matthew Steinmetz (HVAC Technician) was 
introduced by Dr. Taylor. 
 

Minutes pg 2 of 9 



Board Book Page 8 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

VII.    COMMUNICATIONS 
Reports from Faculty, Senior Leadership, the Saints Foundation and ICCTA were 
presented within the Board Book previously sent.  The President’s report was 
provided separately.  Dr. Price and Darci added to their report via Zoom from 
their attendance at the AACC Conference.  Darci added that the Dongola School 
Board approved their participation in the College Academy Initiative.  
 
John Windings and Steve Heisner acknowledged the Day of Giving and the 
increase in donors from Western Kentucky, while Dr. Dufour thanked Dr. Taylor 
for his guidance. 

 
 
VIII. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
MOTION NO.        4 
 
A motion was made by April Moore and seconded by Andrea Witthoft to approve the 
consent agenda as follows: 
 

A. Treasurer’s Report                                       
B. Approval of Bills 

 
Education Fund $1,334,791.12 
Building Fund 95,477.46 
Restricted Bldg. Fund 2,800.00 
Bond & Interest Fund 0.00 
Auxiliary Enterprises Fund 191,273.47 
Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants) 138,520.71 
Restricted Purposes - FWS* 1,473.00 
Restricted Purposes - PELL 730,481.26 
Restricted Purposes - SEOG 0.00 
Trust & Agency Fund 2,933.15 
  
Audit Fund 0.00 
Liability Protection Settlement Fund (TORT) 43,080.08 

  
Grand Total $2,540,830.25 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Windings, J. Darden, R. Scarbrough, 
D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore and A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
 

Minutes pg 3 of 9 
 



Board Book Page 9 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

IX.       CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FUND TRANSFER 
 
MOTION NO.   5 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates  
To approve the interfund transfer ($20,000.00): To repay loan originally made on 
5.31.21 from the Education Fund to Restricted Purposes Fund (3.31.22) 
 

On roll call vote, the member voted as follows:  J. Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, 
J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, A. Moore and M. McMahan all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
X. MONITORING REPORTS  

None 
 
 
XI.  A. BOARD FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING UPDATE 
 
John Windings, Chairperson of the Board Finance Committee gave an update on the 
three Financial Advisors who were evaluated by the committee.  There will be initial 
upfront costs, however the College will benefit.  The committee agreed that this was a 
good learning experience and acknowledged the work of Chris Clark, VPAS. 
 
 
MOTION NO.        6 
 
XI. B. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF A FINANCIAL ADVISOR 
 

A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by Riley Scarbrough to 
recommend the Board approve the selection of PMA Securities, LLC, Naperville, IL 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  M. McMahan, J. Windings, A. Witthoft, 
R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner and A. Moore all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 

 
 
MOTION NO.   7 
 
XI. C. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE FY22 AUDIT ENGAGEMENT 
LETTER 
 
This item was tabled until reviewed with the Saints Foundation.   
 
 
 

Minutes pg 4 of 9 



Board Book Page 10 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

XI. D.  COMMENCEMENT UPDATE 
 
No Motion Necessary, Update Only 
 
 
MOTION NO.   8 
 
XI. E. CAPITAL BUDGET REVIEW (FIRST READ) 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by April Moore to recommend the 
Board approve the capital projects listed on the FY23 Capital Projects List to be 
considered for potential funding in the College’s FY23 final budget. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  S. Heisner had 
stepped out.  The Vice Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.       9 
 
XI. F. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO PAY OFF THE PPP LOAN 
  
A motion was made by Michael McMahan and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
recommend the Board authorize the CFO to pay off the PPP loan in the amount of 
$1,579,051.75 on May 3, 2022. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  S. Heisner had 
stepped out.  The Vice Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.       10 
 
XI. G. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF ST. MORITZ CONTRACT FOR SECURITY 
SERVICES 
 
A motion was made by Deborah Shelton-Yates and seconded by John Windings to 
recommend the Board approve the contract with St. Moritz Security Services, Inc. to 
provide security services from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. 
McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough and J. Darden all voted 
Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
XII. BOARD POLICY REVIEW/APPROVAL 
None 

Minutes pg 5 of 9 



Board Book Page 11 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

MOTION NO.      11 
 
XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates 
to adjourn and go into Executive Session at 6:36 p.m. for the purpose of discussing: 

A. Consideration of Extension, Alteration, Performance, or Compensation of 
Employees’ Employment pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1)  

B. Consideration of Approval for Non-Renewal, Resignation, or Termination of 
any staff or employee of the College pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1)  

C. Consideration of Approval Consideration of Items That May Lead or Have Led 
to Litigation pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(11) 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner. 
M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft and R. Scarbrough all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   12 
 
A motion was made by Riley Scarbrough and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
recommend the Board adjourn out of Executive Session at 8:21 p.m.  

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: R.Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-
Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J Windings, and A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  
The Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   13 
 
A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by Riley Scarbrough to approve 
the minutes of the Executive Session held on May 2, 2022.  
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  A. Witthoft, R Scarbrough, J. Darden, 
D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore and J. Windings all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
  
 
MOTION NO.       14 
 
XIV. A.i.  COLLECTIVE BARGAINING UPDATE 
 
A motion was made by Michael McMahan and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
recommend the addition of John Schneider and Darci Cather to the Collective 
Bargaining Team. 
 

Minutes pg 6 of 9 
 



Board Book Page 12 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. 
Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
MOTION NO.   15 
 
XIV. A.ii. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO HIRE AN EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by April Moore to recommend the 
Board approve the hire of Vicky Cornelissen for the full-time position of Executive 
Assistant to the VP of Administrative Services and HR effective May 3, 2022. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Windings, J. Darden, R. Scarbrough, 
D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore and A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 

  

MOTION NO.   16 
 
XIV. A. iii. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO HIRE A DIRECTOR OF BUSINESS & 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
A motion was made by John Windings and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
recommend the Board approve the hire of Lydia Dover for the position of Director of 
Business & Workforce Development effective May 3, 2022. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates and S. Heisner all voted Yea.    The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
MOTION NO.  17 
 
XIV. A. iv.  CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL TO RATIFY THE PART-TIME 
EMPLOYEES 
 

A motion was made by Riley Scarbrough and seconded by John Windings to 
recommend the Board approve the part-time hires as listed 
 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. 
Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 

 Minutes pg 7 of 9 



Board Book Page 13 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

MOTION NO.   18 
 
XIV. A. v.  CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE PRESIDENT’S CONTRACT 
 
Tabled until the June Board of Trustees Meeting. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   19 
 
XIV. B. i. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF OF FULL TIME FACULTY 
RETIREMENT 
 
A motion was made by James Darden and seconded by Riley Scarbrough to 
recommend the Board approve the retirement of Craig Bradley effective May 11, 2024. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner, M. 
McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough and J. Darden all voted 
Yea.  The Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
  
MOTION NO.   20 
 
XIV. B. ii. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FULL TIME EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT  
 
A motion was made by Michael McMahan and seconded by John Windings to 
recommend the Board approve the retirement of Monica Brahler effective June 30, 
2022. 

 
On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates, S. Heisner. 
M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. Witthoft and R. Scarbrough all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION NO.   21 
 

XIV. B. iii. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FULL TIME FACULTY RESIGNATION 

A motion was made by April Moore and seconded by Riley Scarbrough to recommend 
the Board approve the resignation of Betsy (Elizabeth) Shallenberger effective May 14, 
2022. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  R.Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-
Yates, S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J Windings, and A. Witthoft all voted Yea.  
The Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
 

Minutes pg 8 of 9 



Board Book Page 14 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
MOTION NO.       22 
 
XIV. B. iv. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF FULL TIME EMPLOYEE 
RESIGNATION 
 
A motion was made by Andrea Witthoft and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates to 
recommend the Board approve the resignation of Caleb Ingram effective May 20, 2022. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows:  M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. Windings, A. 
Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden, D. Shelton-Yates and S. Heisner all voted Yea.    The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 
 
 
XV.  TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
James Darden acknowledged the numerous Facebook postings and finds the 
information beneficial. 
 
 
MOTION NO.         23 
 
XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
A motion was made by Michael McMahan and seconded by Deborah Shelton-Yates 
to adjourn at 8:35 p.m. 
 

On roll call vote, the members voted as follows: S. Heisner, M. McMahan, A. Moore, J. 
Windings, A. Witthoft, R. Scarbrough, J. Darden and D. Shelton-Yates all voted Yea.  The 
Chairperson declared the motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes pg 9 of 9 
 



Board Book Page 15 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Student Trustee Report 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
 
This May was a big month for our SCC students! The Spring's final exams started on 
Monday the 9th and continued until Thursday, May 12th. May 13th marked the last day 
of the Spring semester and our graduates' commencement. This semester had 169 
"completers" and 276 completions. The ceremony was a lovely affair, and spirits were 
high! I heard glowing reviews of how personal and unique the rolling commencement 
makes the graduation event.  
 
May 14th was the pinning ceremony for the practical nursing program, where 25 LPN 
students were pinned. Each new nurse took their oath and celebrated their fantastic 
achievement with family and friends.  
 
On the 30th, Shawnee celebrated the 30th annual adult education recognition 
ceremony. There were 13 GED graduates and 27 alternative high school graduates.  

  
On the 24th, SCC held a ribbon-cutting ceremony at the Metropolis Extension Center. 
Our truck driving program now offers CDL training, a new state-of-the-art simulator, a 
classroom, and a training range. Shawnee is now an approved provider of training for 
entry-level truck drivers. Hopefully, with the opening of the new truck driving location, 
our school can reach more students! 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Riley Scarbrough, Student Trustee



Board Book Page 16 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Faculty 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
 
 
There was no Faculty Board Report submitted. 
 
 
 
 
Compiled by faculty submissions 
Ian Nicolaides, Shawnee College Education Association, President 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 17 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
President’s Report 

June 6, 2022 

FY-22 Enrollment Update   
Headcount Reimbursable Credit-Hours 

 
FY22 

FY21 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY21 
(Final) 

FY 22 
FY21 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY21 
(Final) 

Summer 758 668 13.47% 668 2,996 3,139.5 -4.57% 3,139.5 
Fall  1,541 1,632 -5.58% 1,632 12,701 12,589.5 0.89% 12,435 

Spring 1,681 1,772 -5.14% 1773 12,487 14,034 -8.37% 14,168 
Total 3,980 4,072 -2.26% 4,073 28,184 29,763 -5.30% 29,743 

FY 22 Credit-Hour Budget Projection 33,237 Difference: (5,053) 
 

FY-23 Enrollment Update   
Headcount Reimbursable Credit-Hours 

 
FY23 

FY22 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY22 
(Final) 

FY 23 
FY22 
(YTD) 

% ∆ 
FY22 
(Final) 

Summer 467  -10.88%  2,533 2,732.5 -7.32%  
Fall  422  17.55%  4,421 3,961.5 11.60%  

Spring         
Total 889    6,954 6,694 3.88%  

FY 22 Credit-Hour Budget Projection  Difference:  
*Data pulled 05/31/2022; State reimbursement is based on credit-hours generated at mid-term.  

 
The following events are noteworthy: 
• On 04/27, hosted the Administrative Professionals Celebration lunch.  Over 20 

Executive & Administrative Support Staff attended the event.  We provided gifts and 
activities for all participants.  Feedback from the event was very positive.  This is a 
G3O5SE activity. 

 
• On 05/04, met with the Executive Director of the Saints Foundation, Dr. Jeff 

Dufour, for the purpose of reviewing Saints Foundation activities, establishing 
performance expectations/parameters, exchanging ideas for improving strategic 
and operational activities, and strengthening communication between both 
organizations.  In addition, we reviewed results from the Day of Giving fundraising 
event.  Dr. Dufour was encouraged to begin planning events for FY23 ASAP and let 
me know how the College could help.  This is a G3O2 (General) activity. 

 
 
 

Pg. 1 of 8 



Board Book Page 18 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• Attended the Executive Council (EC) meeting on 05/05. Topics included: 
Council/Team Updates, Textbook/Course Materials Adoption Policy, Exit Interview 
Procedure, Review of Policy/Procedure Progression, and Council Procedures. This is 
a G3O4SA focused activity. Outcomes of interest are: 
o Academic Affairs is looking to establish procedures for the implementation of 

SmartEvals.  In addition, the State Authorization Reciprocity Agreement (SARA) 
for distance education is being reviewed. 

o Student Affairs is reviewing the College’s dual credit website for and using 
Parkland College’s website on Concurrent Enrollment for inspiration. 

o DEI Council is reviewing remote work policy and procedures but is having 
trouble establishing a quorum. 

o Administrative Services is working on details to implement a virtual ID for all 
students and employees. 

o Facilities Team recommended a Capital Project List and is also examining 
options for fleet management. 

o Academic Standards Team is working to develop a policy and procedure for 
textbook and course material adoption.  They are focusing on best ways to 
utilize Open Educational Resources (OER).   

o Safety & Risk Management Team made a recommendation for the assignment of 
specific salaries to the Tort Fund (Fund-12) for FY23.  In addition, the Team is 
working on safety plans for each Extension Center. 

o Business and Finance Team is reviewing existing business procedures and is in 
process of beginning to update into the new template. 

o An Exit-Interview Process, which was initiated by the Employee Relations Team 
and recommended by DEI Council was reviewed.  Several comments for 
improvement were made.  Specific recommendations included: review and 
update of current policy; develop a procedure that includes a timeline and 
describes how data will be used to improve employee experiences. 

o SCEA expressed no concerns with the College potentially interchanging 
Assessment Day with Convocation Day.  This may be needed to better align 
Assessment processes with the Budget Development timeline. 

o Dr. Teske and Jesse Smith-Fulia will be providing shared governance training for 
all Councils and Teams.  The focus of the training is to help Councils/Teams 
understand some of the nuances of the College’s shared governance processes 
and to help individuals gain a better understanding of their shared governance 
responsibilities. 

 
• On 05/06, I hosted a Zoom meeting with Dr. Jim Reed (ICCTA), Dr. Deb Bragg (Bragg 

& Associates), Tim Harmon (Bragg & Associates), Dr. April Teske, and VP Darci 
Cather.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the College’s engagement with a 
Community College Baccalaureate (CCB) Case-Making Process that is being driven 
by ICCTA.  Essentially, one of ICCTA’s top priorities is to examine the possibility of 
advocating for a change to the State’s Community College Act that would allow 

 

Pg. 2 of 8  



Board Book Page 19 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Community Colleges to confer select baccalaureate degrees.  Shawnee Community 
College was one of three Community College’s in the State (Malcolm-X and Moraine 
Valley were the others) selected to help build a data-driven case for this initiative. 
 
At the conclusion of this meeting, SCC agreed to participate with the study to 
examine the possibility of offering a Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) and 
Bachelor of Applied Technology (BAT) degrees.  Please understand, at this point, 
this is just a study.  If the data proves that we can successfully serve an unmet 
need in our service region, there will be many steps, that will need to take place 
over several years, before we could potentially offer a bachelor’s degree.  Still, it is 
nice that we are being noticed, statewide, for our leadership, creativity, and 
innovation as it relates to academic planning and political engagement.  This is a 
G1O1 and G1O2 focused initiative.  

 
• On 05/06, Trustee Shelton-Yates and I attended the College’s Spring Concert for the 

band and choir programs.  Several of the College’s employees, who had children 
participating in the event, also attended.  The Band played spring-focused songs 
called Siege, Rain, Endless Rainbows, and Prevail.  The Choir sang Tshotsholoza, My 
Shot (from Hamilton), And So it Goes (Billy Joel cover), City of Stars, and A Million 
Dreams.  The students displayed excellent musicianship.  The program was 
conducted by Lee VanAlstine.  Although the primary intent was to support our 
students, this is loosely a G3O5SE focused initiative as well. 

 
• On 05/13, I hosted a second Zoom meeting with Dr. Deb Bragg (Bragg & Associates), 

Tim Harmon (Bragg & Associates), Dr. April Teske, and VP Darci Cather.  The 
purpose of the meeting was to develop a coordinated data-gathering strategy to 
support the College’s CCB Case-Making initiative.  Much of the conversation 
revolved around selecting an appropriate region for data-gathering.  Also, 
designation of appropriate Program Classification System (PCS) and Classification 
of Instructional Program (CIP) codes that could be linked to national Standard 
Occupational Classification (SOC) job codes was discussed. This is a G1O1 and 
G1O2 focused initiative. 

 
• On 05/13, the College hosted its 53rd annual commencement ceremony. Of the 

nearly 250 students eligible to walk in the ceremony, nearly 100 did so. Hundreds 
of family members engaged in the ceremony. All seven of the College’s Trustees 
participated and a majority of the College’s full‐time employees participated in the 
event.  The event was extraordinarily successful at many levels. Feedback on the 
event has been overwhelmingly positive. Special recognition goes to Jackie Smith 
for organizing every detail, Tina Dudley for organizing campus beautification 
efforts, and the Commencement Planning Committee for their diligence and hard 
work aimed at ensuring this event turned into a memorable experience for our 
graduates and their families. 

 
 
 

Pg. 3 of 8  



Board Book Page 20 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• On 05/14, the College hosted the Pinning Ceremony for our PN graduates. Twenty‐
six (26) graduates participated in the ceremony. Trustee Darden, Trustee Shelton-
Yates, VP Cather, all Nursing faculty, and all Nursing support staff also participated 
in the event. The event was held in the Ed Center and approximately 200 family 
members were in attendance. The ADN Ceremony is tentatively scheduled for 
07/28. 

 
• On 05/17, participated in the SICCM Board meeting. The agenda focused on an 

enrollment for the Medical Lab Technician (MLT), Occupational Therapy Assistant 
(OTA), and Surgical Technology (ST) programs. All programs appear to be tracking 
as expected (slight increases) for fall enrollment. The FY21 Audit was reviewed and 
the organization received a “clean audit.”  The FY23 budget was tentatively 
approved. Operating expenses are expected to be approximately $1.28M. It is 
estimated that roughly $728K of those operating expenses will be covered by DCFS, 
TANF, and SNAP grants. The remaining $520K will be split between Shawnee and 
JALC based on a per‐student usage model. 

 
A discussion about the future of SICCM was initiated by the President of JALC and 
myself.  There is question about how SICCM’s focus on DCFS, TANF, and SNAP 
grant management fits with the mission of both community college institutions – 
especially in light of ICCB’s recent rule change that allows Community College’s to 
share programs through the implementation of an Intergovernmental Agreement.  
In light of this discussion, it was decided that both SCC and JALC will explore 
sharing the MLT, OTA, and ST programs and how that might look without SICCM.  
The College’s CAO’s will begin investigating issues relating to program 
management and develop a plan from withdrawing from SICCM, if appropriate.   

 
• On 05/18, met with the Executive Director of the Saints Foundation, Dr. Jeff 

Dufour, for the purpose of reviewing Saints Foundation activities, establishing 
performance expectations/parameters, exchanging ideas for improving strategic 
and operational activities, and strengthening communication between both 
organizations.  Much of the discussion focused on the development of fund-raising 
activities aimed at helping the Foundation recover operational costs.  Dr. Dufour 
was encouraged to begin expanding his influence beyond the Southern Region of 
the College’s service area.  To that end, several individuals connected with the 
College that could help him with this task was shared.  I offered to lend my help 
where needed.  This is a G3O2 (General) activity. 

 
• On 05/18, Leslie Cornelius-Weldon (Cairo Center Coordinator), Lindsay Johnson 

(Extension Centers Director), VP Cather, ED Hunsperger, and I attended an event at 
the Cairo Center to publicly announce our partnership with Illinois Department of 
Human Services (IDHS) on the Mobile Service Center.  Governor Pritzker’s Cabinet 
Secretary, Grace Hou, and several IDHS employees including Deputy Director Brock 
Dunlap and Public Service Administrator Jeremy Staton also attended the event.   

 

Pg. 4 of 8  



Board Book Page 21 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

The Mobile Service Center helps Alexander and Pulaski residents access medical 
benefits, SNAP benefits, employment and training services, Low Income Home 
Energy Assistance, child care, and more.  The Mobile Office is available on 
Thursday’s between the hours of 9:00a and 4:00p at the Cairo Extension Center. 
This is a G1O3 focused initiative. 

 
• On 05/19, met with Dr. Jonah Rice, President of Southeastern College.  The purpose 

of the discussion was to explore partnership opportunities between the 
institutions.  Specific topics included: Successes and setbacks related to previous 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Institutions, Potential for sharing academic 
and administrative resources, and ways to strengthen collaborative efforts between 
CAO’s at our regional sister institutions. This is a G1O2 and G1O3 focused 
initiative. 

 
• On 05/24, the College formally announced our intention to expand the Truck 

Driving program to the Metropolis Extension Center with a ribbon-cutting and 
ground-breaking ceremony.  Dozens of community people attended the event 
including Senator Dale Fowler, Representative Patrick Windhorst, Metropolis Mayor 
Don Canada, Metropolis Alderman Dylan Chambers, Metropolis Alderman Jeremy 
Holley, and Executive Director of the Illinois Trucking Association Matt Hartt.  
Board Chair, Steve Heisner, participated and helped host the event.  In addition, 
dozens of College employees made this event a spectacular success for the College.  
Special thanks go to Kelly Jennings, Beth Crowe, and Lindsay Johnson. The entire 
event can be viewed here.  In addition, the College received a great amount of 
media coverage from the event including: 

 
o WSIL TV – News Coverage 
o The Southern – News Story  
o The Patch.Com – News Story  
o Metropolis Planet – News Story 
o Illinois Transportation News – News Story 
o Infotatile.com – News Story 
o The Paducah Sun – News Story 
o theexpiredmeter.com – News Story 
o KPVI TV (out of Idaho) – News Coverage 
 
This is a G1O2SA focused initiative.  
 

• On 05/24, Trustee Darden, VP Cather, Ginger Harner, Christina Faulkner, and I 
attended the College’s 30th Adult Education Program Graduation Ceremony.  Several 
of the College’s part-time staff were also in attendance.  Thirteen (13) GED 
graduates and 27 Alternative High School graduates were honored at this event. 
The event was held in the L-Atrium and approximately three-dozen family members 
were in attendance.  

 
 

Pg. 5 of 8  

https://youtu.be/C7Zq8T3Cmu4
https://www.wsiltv.com/news/shawnee-community-college-breaks-ground-on-student-truck-driving-facility-in-metropolis/article_b09ca0e6-db7f-11ec-b254-ff12ac747c12.html
https://thesouthern.com/news/local/shawnee-college-expands-truck-driver-training-program-to-metropolis/article_7e85b665-66fc-5600-ba3a-0c99e29830e6.html
https://patch.com/illinois/across-il/illinois-quick-hits-pritzker-wants-more-federal-funds-chicago-alderman-meet-crime
https://www.metropolisplanet.com/news/scc-expands-its-in-demand-cdl-program-to-metropolis/article_94bef02d-879a-55b3-b45e-6a836b2b1e6d.html
https://iltransportationnews.wordpress.com/
https://infotatile.com/shawnee-college-expands-truck-driver-training-program-to-metropolis-local-news/
https://www.paducahsun.com/news/shawnee-college-expands-its-in-demand-cdl-program/article_c23dc6d2-cb15-54b9-9564-21008e0c08e6.html
http://theexpiredmeter.com/
https://www.kpvi.com/news/national_news/illinois-quick-hits-pritzker-wants-more-federal-funds-chicago-alderman-meet-about-crime-quincy-government/article_c6ca7619-37b4-51fb-818e-5da7399cae86.html


Board Book Page 22 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• Over the course of the month, the following K-12 Community Engagement meetings 
occurred: 
o 05/04, Attended the Union County Young CEO/Entrepreneur Trade Show. 

Roughly 25 HS Seniors displayed the goods and services developed from their 
participation in this program.  The College will be more actively engaged with 
this program in the future.   

o 05/09, Dr. Price & I met w/ Century HS personnel Brent Miller, Ashley Dexter, 
and Landon Sommer for the purpose of recognizing Ben Miller’s receipt of the 
Pulaski Alexander Soil & Water Conservation District Scholarship.  Ben will be 
enrolled in the College’s Truck Driving, Basic Electricity, and Welding Programs 
in the fall.  We presented Ben and Brent Miller with a SCC shirt and hat. 

o 05/10, Dr. Price and I met with 16 Century HS graduates who have selected 
Shawnee Community College as their College of choice and have enrolled for the 
Fall 22 semester.  We presented all graduates with a SCC shirt. 

o 05/10, at the request of Century HS personnel, Carrie Davis and I attended the 
Century HS Awards Ceremony during the evening.  Carrie & I presented 
scholarship awards to several of the HS’s graduating senior class. 

o 05/11, Monica Brahler, Carrie Davis, and I attended the Anna-Jonesboro HS 
Awards Ceremony during the evening.  Carrie & I presented scholarship awards 
to several of the HS’s graduating senior class. 

o 05/12, VP Darci Cather & I attended the Joppa HS Graduation Ceremony.  At the 
ceremony, I delivered a speech and presented 3 of the HS’s 11 graduates with a 
certificate for completing their Associate Degrees.  In addition, I presented 
another student with a certificate for completing more than 30 College credits. 

o 05/19, VP Clark, Dr. Teske, and I attended the Anna Junior High School 
graduation (we each had family members graduating).  There were 86 graduates.  
Of those, 85 attended the post-graduation party hosted at the College in the 
gymnasium.  Each of the students received a plethora of SCC swag (including a 
T-Shirt) and a hand-written note inviting them to continue connecting with the 
College throughout their High School Career.  Tina Dudley wrote all the notes – 
God Bless Her!  

o 05/20, Trustee Darden, Trustee Shelton-Yates, Teale Betts and I attended the 
Vienna High School graduation.  Roughly, 1/3 of their nearly 90 graduates 
identified SCC as their preferred location for the Fall 22 semester.  In addition, 
five of their graduates – including two of their valedictorians and one of their 
salutatorians – also completed their college degree.  

o 05/23, hosted an event that welcomed Dongola’s entire FY23 senior and junior 
class of students to campus.  These students will be the first group of students 
who will be attending SCC’s Early College program starting with the Fall 22 
semester.   

 
 

 
 

Pg. 6 of 8  



Board Book Page 23 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

o 05/26, hosted a lunch with Dr. Paige Maginel (Superintendent – Dongola) and 
Mr. Jason Hayes (Superintendent – Massac Unit-1) for the purpose of discussing 
future partnership efforts (note: Dr. Vickie Artman, Superintendent – Joppa, was 
also invited but had a last-minute commitment that prevented her attendance).  
At this meeting Dr. Maginel shared her excitement with the upcoming Early 
College partnership between Dongola and SCC.  At the conclusion of the 
meeting Mr. Hayes agreed to meet with me to discuss similar options for Massac 
Unit-1.   

• Miscellaneous Employee Culture Building Activities (G3O5SE): 
o 05/02, Potluck Lunch & Learning Activity. 
o 05/03, Potluck Lunch & Games. 
o 05/04, Potluck Lunch & Games. 
o 05/05, Cookout & Cornhole Tournament 
o 05/06, Nurse Appreciation Lunch & Gifting 
o 05/12, Faculty Appreciation Lunch & Gifting 

 
• Over the course of the month, the following Budget Development (G4O6SC) 

meetings occurred: 
o 05/11 – Reviewed Academic Affairs Budget with VP Cather.  
o 05/17 – Reviewed Adult Education Budget with VP Cather, Dr. Shelby, and 

Ginger Harner. 
o 05/20 – Reviewed Public Information & Marketing Budget with Kevin Hunsperger.  
o 05/23 – Reviewed Academic Affairs budget with VP Clark and VP Cather.  
o 05/24 – Finalized Academic Affairs budget with VP Clark and VP Cather.  
o 05/25 – Reviewed College Revenue Accounts with VP Clark and Brandy Woods. 
o 05/27 – Reviewed Revenue projections with VP Clark and Brad McCormick. 

Contracts, Agreements, MOU’s, and Letters of Support signed 
• ICCB Grant – Amendment to the Adult Ed Basic Funding in the Adult Education 

Family Literacy Grant. 
• ICCB – Signed the ECACE Early Childhood Education Implementation Plan FY23. 
• ICCB – Signed an Intergovernmental Agreement to provide services that assist with 

moving students in and through co-requisite focused education and into credit-
bearing coursework.  In exchange for these services, ICCB will provide the College 
with $25K.   

• SBDC Grant – Amended Small Business Community Navigator Program Agreement. 
• St. Moritz – Signed FY23 Agreement (approved at 05/02 regular Board Meeting). 
• GEER – Signed a grant extension through June 30, 2023. 
• MOU – Signed Transitional Math Partnership Agreement with Joppa HS. 
• MOU – Signed Transitional Math Partnership Agreement with Anna-Jonesboro HS. 
• Innovative Bridge & Transitions Grant – Signed a Service Agreement with Kathy 

Anderson for College & Career Pathways Endorsement and Curriculum Alignment 
Consulting.  Ms. Anderson will be paid $50/hr. for up to 300 hours of consulting.  

 
 

Pg. 7 of 8  



Board Book Page 24 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• Requisition (Quint Excavating) – $7,900.00 for Concrete Repair to front entrance 
and K Building Ramp. 

• Requisition (Frankfort High School) – $6,500.00 instructional costs related to 
Educators Rising Program. 

• Requisition (RAGS Pressure Washing) – $9,436.00 Pressure Wash the entire 
building prior to May 13 Commencement 

• Requisition (Farnsworth) – 4,350.00 Service Fee for the approved task order for the 
Ball Fields Road Design. 

• Requisition (Crowdus) – $4,674.00 for extra COVID cleaning.  
• Requisition (CDWG) – $16,871.04 ViewSonic ViewBoard for Adult ED programs 

(partially funded through grant). 
• Requisition (CDWG) – $44,571.08 for ITV Room Upgrades (all campuses and HS’s). 
• Requisition (Verizon) – $6.796.71 for College Cellphone Usage.  
• Requisition (Almy Education Consulting) – $10,000.00, for consulting related to 

the redesign of the College’s Developmental Math courses.  
• Requisition (CDWG) - $10,208.13 for yearly maintenance on our 7 Polycom units. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg. 8 of 8 



Board Book Page 25 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Academic Affairs 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
Academic Affairs Highlights 

• Accepted into NIU EdSystems Center 2022-2023 cohort of Community College 
and High School Districts collaborating on implementation of the Currency for 
College and Career Pathway Endorsements. Awarded a $25,00 grant as part of 
the project. This grant will support the incentivization of Health Science College 
and Career Pathways endorsements and the development of a short-term Health 
Science certificate which builds in CNA in order to make the program financially 
aid eligible.  

• Hosted a Faculty Appreciation Luncheon on May 12th. Congratulations to Ruth 
Smith (2020-2021 Faculty of the Year) and Tony Gerard (2021-2022 Faculty of 
the Year) on their outstanding contributions to SCC. 

• Truck Driving Expansion Event at the Metropolis Center on May 24th.  
• The Adult Ed program will hold its annual Recognition Ceremony and Reception 

on May 24th.  The program has 35 completers as of mid-May, with more 
scheduled to test in the coming weeks.  10 students earned their GED and 25 
will earn high school diplomas. 

• Practical Nursing pinning ceremony was a wonderful experience Saturday, May 
14th in the Ed Center. We appreciate Deborah Shelton-Yates and James Darden 
attending the program that morning. 26 Practical Nurse graduates were pinned 
and will be returning to campus May 24-26 for their NCLEX-PN Review course 
before sitting for their nursing boards. 

Dean of Transfer & Adult Education Programs Report 
• The Developmental Education Reform Act report to ICCB was submitted before 

the May 1st deadline. This report was a collaboration with Dr. Teske and VP 
Cather. (SP Goal 2, Objective 4, Strategies C, D, E, and F) 

• The College’s FY23 Perkins Local Application and Comprehensive Local Needs 
Assessment (CLNA) as required by ICCB for Perkins V funding to support CTE 
programs was submitted. The application was submitted to ICCB on May 13th. 
The request was for $260,000 to support learner access to SCC CTE programs of 
study, especially those students who had been underserved in the past or who 
had substantial education needs. (SP Goal 1, Objective 2, Strategy O) 

• Dr Shelby attended the SCC Commencement Ceremony on May 13th and wants 
to commend all involved in a wonderfully organized evening for our students 
and their families.  

• Dr. Shelby and math faculty continue work on co-requisite course development 
through the ASPIRE project. (SP Goal 2, Objective 4, Strategies C, D, and F) 

• Dr. Shelby attended the Adult Education Recognition Ceremony on May 24th. 
 
Coordinator of High School Partnerships and Pathways Report 
• The Coordinator and Mindy Ashby attended Awards Day at Vienna High School on 

May 6th.  
• The Coordinator along with Carrie Davis, registered Dongola High School juniors 

and seniors for the upcoming fall semester on May 12th and 17th.  Dongola High 
School Curriculum Director Ellie Rush brought junior and seniors to Main Campus 



Board Book Page 26 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

on May 23rd. The students were taken on a campus tour, received ID cards, went 
over their schedule and other activities. (SP Goal 2, Objective 2, Strategy G) 

• The Coordinator, Blake Goforth, Erin King, Kevin Hunsberger, and Mindy Ashby met 
on May 26th to continue planning the Career Expo. The Career Expo Fair is part of 
the SCC Innovative Bridges Grant and all 12 of our SCC schools will be invited. (SP 
Goal 1, Objective 3, Strategy A) 

• The Coordinator has been working with the Labor Union on labor union course 
updates for the Construction Management program guide. These changes were 
approved at the May 14th Curriculum and Instruction meeting. (SP Goal 1, Objective 
3, Strategy A) 

Director of Adult Education and Alternative Instruction Report  
• The Adult Education staff is working on the FY23 Continuation Plan due June 10th.   
• The Adult Education Department is outfitting a new lab at the Metro Center.  The 

lab will house the Alternative High School students during the day and serve as an 
open lab resource for GED/HSE/Bridge students each evening.  The program will 
continue to offer GED classes at the Spence Community Center as well.  Many 
students are able to walk to this in-town location keeping those classes accessible 
to students who are able to walk to class.  (SP Goal 4, Objective 4.7, Objective 4.8) 

• The Adult Education Department is also installing interactive whiteboards in the 
classrooms at Anna, Cairo, Metropolis, and on the Main Campus this summer.  
These boards are state of the art and help instructors provide an immersive, 
engaging experience for students.  The Program has invested in technology 
upgrades of hardware and software that support student learning, provide 
extensive academic resource for students, and allow students to gain skills that will 
help them compete in the workplace. (SP Goal 4, Objective 4.7, Objective 4.8; SP 
Goal 2, Objective 2.2) 

• On Friday, May 20th, the Adult Education Director will present to her cohort of the 
Illinois Digital Learning Lab on the integration of instructional technology into the 
curriculum.  The use of digital lessons and resources aligned to standards-based 
instruction are providing rich support both in and out of the classroom for 
students in our program.  This school year alone, SCC Adult Ed students have 
shown proficiency in over 8,600 skills and have mastered over 5,500 skills.  (SP 
Goal 4, Objective 4.7, Objective 4.8) 

• On May 26th, Director Harner will attend a meeting of the Illinois Adult Education 
Advisory Council where subcommittees will provide their final recommendations 
for FY22.  As Chair, Mrs. Harner will bring these recommendations to the ICCB 
Board at their June Meeting in Springfield. (SP Goal 3, Objective 3.1, Objective 3.2) 

Nursing and Allied Health Report 
 
Nursing  
• PN informational meetings were held May 3rd and May 5th for 34 new and 

returning students. 
• PN Orientation will be held on June 2nd to formally accept seats in the program 

and classes begin June 6th. 30 New PN students were offered seats in the upcoming 
program. 



Board Book Page 27 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• ACEN Evaluation Review Panel Deliberation is scheduled for June 6th at 1:15pm. 
Nursing faculty were invited to listen to the deliberation via Zoom and will meet in 
the nursing department.  

• The Nursing and Allied Health Advisory Meeting was held April 27th via zoom with 
28 individuals present representing our programs and our community partners. 
The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 9th.  

• 5 students completed the Spring 2022 CNA program at the Anna center. 36 Dual-
credit students completed the CNA program between 3 programs: Massac, Vienna, 
and Goreville. We are actively seeking additional instructors for Union County, 
Cairo and Meridian schools.  

 
 
Enrollment Data Fall 21-Spring 2022:  
 

Beginning of 
Month 

PN (Total 
FT/PT) 

ADN (Total 
FT/PT) 

D/F/M/WD*  

August 2021 37 50 
 

September 2021 34 46 ADN 4 Covid Vaccine WD 
PN 1 Covid Vaccine WD, 1D 

October 2021 34 40 ADN: 6 Covid Vaccine WD 

November 2021 31 39  PN: 2F 1D 
ADN: 1 D 

December 2021 31  34 ADN: 3F, 2D 

January 2022 28  31  PN: 3F 
ADN: 3F 

February 2022 28 31 
 

March 2022 28 31 
 

April 2022 27 31 PN: 1 WD without academic 
penalty 

May 2022 26 Graduated 29  PN: 1 Fail; ADN 2 Fail 

* Drop/ Fail/ Medical/ Withdrawal 
 
Allied Health 

End of the semester/ program totals:  
• 4 of 5 EMT students passed the EMT Course; 1 student took an incomplete in the  

course at this time. Students will be eligible to sit for their NREMT boards in June.  
• 2 Students completed the Emergency Medical Responder course for Spring 2022.  
• 2 EMT courses will be held in the fall: 1 evening class at Main Campus, 1 Saturday 

class through the Cairo extension center and an Alexander County EMS agency.  



Board Book Page 28 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

• 5 Medical Assistant students completed the MA program and have registered for 
the certification exam. One of those students has been accepted into the PN 
program as well.  

• 1 Student Completed the Social Work AAS.  
• 2 Students Completed the Medical Office Assistant certificate. 
• 4 Students completed the Medical Coding Specialist certificate  
• 46 Dual-credit students completed HIT 100 Medical Terminology for the Spring 

Semester between 2 schools.  
 
Career and Technical Programs Report 
 
CPR & Public Safety 
The CPR Program has held 167 classes and certified 590 students this Spring Semester. 
There are currently 16 classes scheduled to take place this summer. 
 
The Driver Safety Program received and processed 597 applications for Spring 
Semester. There have been 429 participants who received a certificate of completion. 
There were 10 face-to-face classes held with a total of 48 students attending. There are 
9 face-to-face classes scheduled for this summer. 
 
SBDC  
The SBDC advised a total of 41 businesses during the month:  
• 12 of 41 businesses advised face-to-face for total of 18.25 hours 
• 12 of 41 businesses advised by phone for a total of 18.25 hours 
• 17 businesses advised by email 
• 10 minority-owned businesses met to discuss development of mentoring program 
• Total New Client Sign Ups – 3 

 
Workforce Development 
Dr. Mason and Leslie Cornelius-Weldon, Cairo Extension Center Coordinator are 
collaborating on a Deckhand job training proposal for Cairo Waterfront Services. 
Classes will be held at the Cairo Extension Center. 
Community Outreach  
The ElderReach program provided 4-week sessions of its Tech for Seniors workshop 
and Chair Yoga for Seniors at the Cairo Extension Center. Six seniors participated in 
the Tech workshop and 15 are participating in the yoga class. The Egyptian Area 
Council on Aging extended its contract to SCC for another year 
 
 
Darci Cather      May 2, 2022 
Vice President Academic Affairs   Date 
 

 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 29 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Administrative Services 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
 
Facilities Department 
The Facilities Department was instrumental in numerous projects this May: 
Commencement and nursing pinning ceremony setup which included securing 
landscaping and power-washing services.  Cleaned and repaired the rooftop at the Cairo 
Center.  Installed upper lighting in the K-Atrium with LED lights.  Continued progress 
with meetings on the gymnasium floor and bleacher project.  Met with, and will continue 
talks with the architects for the asphalt road project, that will go around the ballfield 
and connect with the trucking building.  Worked with Johnson Control on the repair of 
the #2 chiller.  Setup and take down for the groundbreaking ceremony at the Metro 
Center for the new SCC Truck Driving School. 
 
Business Service Department 
Completed the annual PCI compliance for merchant credit card processing which 
included webinar courses on internet security.  Completed the annual Federal Higher 
Education Emergency Relief (HEERF) report.  Completed FY23 blanket purchase orders 
over $25,000.  Attended the Illinois Community College CFO meeting via zoom. 
 
IT Department 
The IT Department uploaded data to the Ellucian Cloud for the Mock 1 review.  This data 
will be used to finish our Ethos install and ready the path for Intelligent Learning 
Platform and Ellucian Experience.  The next step will be Mock 2 where user end testing 
will begin.  A new door entry keypad has been programmed at the Cairo 
Center.   Additional network cabling in the gymnasium was added for commencement 
streaming.  Website updates were completed for Financial Aid and Community 
Education.  IT met with Extreme engineers to address WIFI issues at Main 
Campus.   Installation of a new Ricoh copier for the Nursing area and Metro Center was 
completed.   Twenty all-in-one PCs will be installed at Metro during break for Adult 
Education. 
 
Administrative Services / CFO 
Participation in the discussion regarding replacement of the gym floor and bleacher 
project.  Visit to Three Rivers Community College.  Meeting regarding the possible 
pursuit of Intrafi Network Deposit.  Reviewed the Facility Condition Assessment 
spreadsheet.  Participated in Policy Review training, RAMP, and DEI Council Review 
meeting, as well as Community Engagement via Union County CFO Meeting and Cobden 
Lions Club meetings.   Assisted with setup and participated in the SCC Commencement 
ceremony.  Reviewed the lease for Anna Extension Center.  Continued work within 
Budget Development. 
 

Chris Clark 

Vice President of Administrative Services 

 



Board Book Page 30 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Human Resources 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 

 
I started out May recruiting for and conducting 11 interviews for the following 
positions:  Research Associate, IT Support Specialist, Automotive Faculty, Nursing 
Faculty & Librarian 
 
In May we celebrated our employees with a week of fun activities the Cultural 
Awareness Team (Erin King, Chair) put together. This included themed potlucks, 
games, campus clean-up day, etc. 
We brought awareness to Mental Health by inviting Tina from Massac Mental Health to 
speak to employees during lunch on May 2 where she gave tips on what to watch for in 
our students and how to help our own mental health with work-life balance. The team 
is also in the planning stages of a celebration for Juneteenth. The DEI Council met to 
review the policy review tool and to put together a draft of a Remote Work policy that 
will be sent to the Executive Council’s next meeting. Professional Development team is 
putting together monthly development that can be completed based on feedback 
received from employees. We also will be sharing tips with all employees on how to 
handle “Crucial Conversations”. The first was tips on how to disagree respectfully. 
Another was how to address bad behavior. I was able to utilize the Exit Interview tool 
for the employees exiting the college in May. I created this tool as Google form based 
on the feedback I received from the Employee Relations team in completion of goal 
3.5.B of the of the Strategic Plan.  
 
All of the Economic Interest Statements were received and submitted to the County 
Clerk prior to the May 1st deadline.  
I attended a Four Rivers SHRM meeting as well as Safety, Survey, Cabinet, Executive 
Council, DEI Council, Employee Relations, Professional Development & Cultural 
Awareness team meetings this month. I also conducted the annual Federal Motor 
Carrier Safety Administration checks on all of our CDL drivers for the college so that 
we would be following our DOT regulations. I also submitted an MVR check for others 
who have been driving college vehicles regularly, as recommended by our insurance 
carrier. I attended a CUPA webinar that had great ideas from Dr. Lee about how 
performance appraisals need brought into the 21st Century. I think it aligns well with 
SCC’s Strategic Plan Goals and hope to use that for make some improvements in that 
area in the future 
 
 
 
Submitted By:  Emily Forthman, Executive Director of Human Resources 
 



Board Book Page 31 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Institutional Research, Effectiveness, & Planning  
Board Report, June 6, 2022  
 
The following report summarizes the more notable activities since the submission of 
the last Board report (April 21, 2022-May 24, 2022).  

• Continued meeting with staff and leadership to strengthen the use of our 
infrastructure for systematic data collection, reporting, and use (2.1.H., 4.1.A., 
4.1.E, 4.1.F., 4.3.C., 4.5.B., 4.5.C.). 

o Conducted weekly (and as needed) report meetings with S. Black, D. 
Fehrenbacher, and/or J. VanMeter 

o Facilitated ad hoc survey committee to discuss survey timeline, tools, and 
questions aligned to our KPIs 

 Presented a survey timeline and process for collection of course 
evaluations, graduate exit and follow-up surveys, employer 
surveys, employee surveys, and community surveys to Cabinet for 
approval 

 Along with B. Goforth, completed the graduate exit/follow-up and 
employer satisfaction draft surveys  

o Submitted all gathered SCC applications and recommended questions for 
capturing KPI data to Student Affairs; participated in dual credit 
application meeting 

o Presented the Smart Evals timeline to Cabinet for approval 
o Worked with D. Boyd on Student Tracker file submissions for National 

Student Clearinghouse data 
• Completed data and reporting requirements: 

o Assisted with labor market, course, program, completion, and success 
rate data needed for ICCB program review (4.5.B.), program proposals, 
and other reporting requests 

o Fulfilled external data requests  
o Assisted C. Clark, B. Woods, and L. Price on the annual HEERF II report 
o Met with the CROA consultant on reporting needs and a data dashboard 

(4.1.A., 4.1.H.) 
o Worked with S. Simpson to complete the ISAC College Materials Survey  
o Continued work on the CCRC Summer Institute data files (2.1.A.) 
o Began work on the Community College Baccalaureate (CCB) proposal data   
o Worked with L. Johnson on the community education data for B1007 

annual monitoring report (4.1.G.) 
• Participated in the following Shared Governance meetings and completed 

resulting action items (3.4): 
o Weekly Cabinet meeting 
o Attended Student Academic Leadership Team 5/3/22 to discuss the 

SCCES framework and the student experience at SCC (4.1.A., 4.1.F.) 
o Student Success Team 5/12/22 
o Student Academic Assessment Team 5/9/22 and 5/23/22 
o Recruitment and Enrollment Team 4/27/22 



Board Book Page 32 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

o Conducted a Shared Governance committee Chair training, along with J. 
Smith-Fulia (5/11/22) and created a training video with the assistance of 
R. Stoup and K. Hunsperger (3.1.E.) 

• Attended the following webinars/web meetings: (4.1.F.) 
o Postsecondary Data Partnership with National Student Clearinghouse 

4/28/22 
o Career Coach 4/26/22 
o Some College, No Credential 5/10/22 along with C. Doerr, J. Smith-Fulia,  
o EMSI/Burning Glass 5/24/22 

• Attended the following professional meetings: 
o SIU Women’s Spring Luncheon 4/22/22 and monthly board meeting 

5/23/22 
o CSICCRG 4/25/22 
o AIR Small IR Offices 4/29/22 
o IL Aspiring Leaders Pre-Academy 5/10/22 
o AIR Community College Meeting 5/20/22 

• Participated in the SCC Employee Cookout 5/5/22 
• Participated in the SCC graduation 5/13/22 
• Ensured completion of the CCSSE surveys and their return to University of 

Texas-Austin for scoring (K. Frassato manages this process) 
• Reviewed the current student academic assessment plan and provided 

recommendations for revisions (4.1.C) 
• Reviewed the proposed technology plan and made recommendations on KPI 

alignment (4.1.E., 4.7.A.) 
• Assisted in the Research Associate interview process  

 

Submitted by: Dr. April Teske 
Executive Directory Institutional Effectiveness 



Board Book Page 33 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Public Information & Marketing 
Board Report, June 6, 2022  

Reporting period is from April 27 to May 24, 2022.  The numbers are great this month, 
in large part due to the commencement and LPN pinning ceremonies. Please let me 
know if you have any questions. Thank you! 

Facebook 

Total followers: 6,956  
Total likes: 6,607  

Facebook page reach: 34,109 (+1%) 
   *This is the number of people who saw any content from the Shawnee Community 
College FB page or about our page. This includes posts, stories, ads, social information 
from people who interact with our page, etc.  
New page likes: 47 (+21%) 
New page followers: 68 (+62%) 
Page visits: 1,946 (+59%) 
Recommendations: Insufficient data from Facebook at this time. 
Post engagement: 22,013 (+208%) 
     *This is the number of times people engaged with a post through reactions, 
comments, shares, or clicks. 

Video views: 7,360 (+100%) 

Facebook Ads 

The summer/fall enrollment carousel ad has (to date) a reach of 9,274 and 22,631 
impressions. Budget for this is $250, we’ve spent $112.19 so far.  
 
Instagram  

Total followers: 1,016 

Reach: 1,818 (-81.1%) 
Profile visits: 254 (-0.4%) 
New followers: 16 (-27.3%) 

When I started here on Feb. 28, it was one of my early goals to bring more attention to 
our Instagram page. Having down that, we saw huge spikes in engagement and 
followers. Now that we have an audience, things have settled a bit. I am working on 
new ways to continue to breathe new life into that channel. Instagram is growing, but 
it’s leveled off.  
 
Twitter 
 
Total followers: 1,146 (+12) 
Tweets: 98 



Board Book Page 34 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Tweet impressions: 12,400 (+5.7%) 
Profile visits: 5,323 (-0.6%) 
Mentions: 17 (-22.7%) 
 

LinkedIn 

Total followers: 2,172 
Impressions: 1,409 
 

Local News Coverage 

April 26  The Southern Day of Giving Preview N/A 

April 27 10 PM News WSIL Day of Giving Preview Dr. DuFour 

April 28 AM News WSIL Day of Giving Preview Dr. DuFour 

MAY     

4 5 PM News KFVS Truck Driving PKG Kelly Jennings 

4 6 PM News WSIL Camp VO N/A 

4 6 PM News WSIL Truck Driving VO N/A 

5 AM News KFVS Truck Driving PKG Kelly Jennings 

9 AM News WSIL 
Community Ed/ Kids' Camps Live 
intervew Kevin Hunsperger 

9 5 PM News WSIL Community Ed/ Kids' Camps VO N/A 

9 6 PM News WSIL Community Ed/Kids' Camps VO SOT Kevin Hunsperger 

24 5 PM News WSIL Truck Driving VO SOT Dr. Taylor 

24 10 PM News WSIL Truck Driving VO SOT Dr. Taylor 

25 AM News WSIL Truck Driving VO SOT Dr. Taylor 

25  Paducah Sun Truck Driving  
 



Board Book Page 35 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
 



Board Book Page 36 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
 



Board Book Page 37 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
Submitted By 
Kevin Hunsperger 
Executive Director of Public Information & Marketing 



Board Book Page 38 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

The Saints Foundation 
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
 

The Day of Giving date was a success with almost $25,000 being raised. Thanks to Dr. 
Taylor, the college faculty and staff that assisted in getting this event off the ground. 
Many thanks to the Saints Foundation board and all who helped make this event a 
success.  

The Saints Foundation met with former Illinois Senator and Congressman Glenn 
Poshard on May 20th, 2022 to discuss fundraising and to look at opportunities that lie 
in our district. Dr. Poshard and his wife Jo started the Poshard Foundation over 20 
years ago and it was illuminating to see his perspective when it relates to fundraising.  

 

 
 
Submitted by  
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
Executive Director of the Saints Foundation 

 

 
 



Board Book Page 39 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Student Affairs  
Board Report, June 6, 2022 
 
Student Support Services – Amber Suggs 
 
The Student Support Services (SSS) had the All-Star Showcase, an event of virtual 
recognition of students and their achievements!  It was a great time had by all. 

SSS is beginning the transfer season; we have had six students graduated in Fall 2021. 
For this semester, we have 32 students who applied for graduation and nine students 
intended for summer.  For the academic year 2021-2022, we have 47 students.   
 
SSS Director Amber Suggs presented at the New Mexico Professional TRiO Conference. 

SSS is preparing a great interactive summer for our students.  We will have a number 
of college visits and cultural events. 

SSS is preparing to disseminate the Supplemental Grant Aid to students for the Spring 
Semester.   

Educational Talent Search – Jipaum Askew 
 
ETS Staff continued to provide career exploration for Shawnee Community College 
(SCC) district sophomores at Meridian High School (HS).  Recruitment of students for 
the ETS program continued with Cairo Jr/Sr. HS and Vienna Jr/Sr HS. 
 
ETS Staff provided college tours to Harris-Stowe University and Lane College for Cairo 
HS and Meridian HS students.  In addition, ETS partnered with Brookport Elementary to 
take sixth graders to visit the St. Louis City Museum.  
 
Staff provided workshops on Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM) using 
Sphero bots, programmable robots, KEVA Planks, uncoated, natural wood planks, and 
Brookport, Maple-Grove, and Cairo Elementary students.  
 
ETS and Arrowleaf, a Southern Illinois community service organization, collaborated to 
combine Prevention Awareness Week's observance with ETS's multi-media program on 
May 12. 
 
Athletics – John Sparks 
 
General News (John Sparks) 
  
The John Sparks Fun-DA-Mental Basketball Camp is set for June 13 thru the 15th.  This 
camp is geared for boys and girls in 3rd through 8th grade. 
 
The SAINTS Elite Basketball Camp is set for June 20.  This camp is for high school boys 
that are potential college basketball players.   



Board Book Page 40 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
Student-Athletes Academics by the numbers; 
16 Academic All-American Nominees 
6 Student-Athletes with a 4.0 GPA 
24 Student-Athletes with a 3.5 GPA or higher 
45 Student-Athletes with a 3.0 GPA or higher 
Spring 2022 Athletics GPA is 3.0 
 
Men's Basketball (John Sparks) 
  
Robert Stafford (Egyptian HS) has visited campus and workout with the men's 
basketball team and will be offered a scholarship next week when he meets with 
us.  Robert is a 5'10 190lbs guard from Tamms, IL, averaging 22.4ppg, 6.5rpg, 4.8apg, 
and 3.7spg.   The 1000-point scorer finished the 2021-22 season with 693 points, 
ranking him the 2nd All-time leading scorer at Egyptian High School.   
 
The SAINTS finished with a team GPA of 2.6 and had one Academic All-American 
nominee in Kyonte Holder, who graduated with honors and a 4.0 GPA.  Five SAINTS 
were eligible to graduate this Spring. 
  
Women's Basketball (Chevis Thompson) 
The Lady Saints are close to finishing their recruiting for the 2022-23 season.   
 
The Lady Saints finished with a team GPA of 2.0 but had two ladies, Anna Hess & 
Janiece Ellerbee, that are Academic All-American nominees.   Seven Lady Saints were 
eligible to graduate this Spring.   
  
Baseball (Ken Reichert) 
Saints Baseball season has come to a close.  The SAINTS finished with a record of 2-40. 
 
Saints Baseball finished with a team GPA of 3.0.  Brendan Gallaher, Agustus Garner, 
Seth Jones, Christopher Maxwell, Justin Moses, Holden Newton, Marcel Vitale, and 
Jeremy Choate are Academic All-American nominees.   Seven baseball players were 
eligible to graduate this Spring.   
  
Softball (Kyle Smith) 
The Lady Saints Softball season has come to a close.  The Lady Saints finished with a 
record of 8-47.    
  
The Lady Saints Softball team finished with a 3.15 GPA.   Kaiyah Adams, Miley 
Kwiatkowski, Megan Theis, and Alexandria Paintner are Academic All-American 
nominees.   Five softball players were eligible to graduate this Spring.   
 
 
Volleyball (Jamie Chambers) 
 
The Lady Saints Volleyball team finished with a 2.67 GPA.   Daisha Carthell, Izabella 
Dillingham, Kamryn Madinger, and Bryanna Pace are Academic All-American 
nominees.  Two softball players were eligible to graduate this Spring.   



Board Book Page 41 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
Recruitment & Enrollment – Dr. Cara Doerr 
All staff assisted with Commencement and have been working hard to get students 
tested and/or enrolled.  I want to give a shout out to Advisor and Recruiter Carrie 
Davis and her recruiting efforts.  She takes on more and more every day and she 
always does so with a smile and enthusiasm!  I would also like to add that although 
Mindy Reach and Tanya Hill are in another unit, they are both proactive, thorough, and 
knowledgeable advisors, and they have both started joining our meetings.  They have a 
wealth of knowledge and experience and are assets to our college and are able to help 
mentor other staff.  I am happy they are able to join us and collaborate with us on 
ways to best meet our students' needs.  
I am working on writing a new statement for the website about payment options and 
deadlines.  Dr. Price, Chris, Danielle, and I are working with the Business Office, 
Academic Affairs, Financial Aid, and Business Office on a process and dates for de-
enrollment, which will include how we plan to "save" students from the de-enrollment. 
 
We met Thursday, May 19, to discuss the order of billing and institutional waivers.  In 
addition to evaluating our order of billing, we are looking at ways we can save the 
institution money while at the same time maintain the integrity and purpose of 
institutional aid.  For example, I think initiating small changes such as tuition waivers 
waiving tuition only (and no fees) or allowing only mandatory student fees rather than 
all lab/course fees.  Additional measures we are evaluating include capping some 
tuition waivers at 12 hours (full-time equivalent).  
 
I worked with Danielle to develop a new student withdrawal form.  This is one measure 
put in place so that we are in compliance with Return of Title IV requirements, which 
include a documented procedure for student withdrawals.  The drafted form will be 
presented at the next Executive Council meeting.  In addition, the SARA policy is also 
being presented to Executive Council at the next meeting.  
 
I re-wrote all of the content for the Financial Aid website and created several new web 
pages.  Jonathan Van Meter was instrumental in helping me with this undertaking and 
did a fantastic job!  I'm now working on creating Registrar/Records web pages.  
Danielle created a central hub/location in MySCC for all Registrar/Advisement forms, 
processes, articulation agreements, etc., to be housed, and all staff will be able to 
access this information.  Many of these items will be posted on the Registrar/Records 
webpages as well, but this will serve as a central location for staff to access 
information related to advising and the student record.  
 
Danielle and I developed a consolidated Early College Pathways application form to 
replace the two existing "escrow" forms and streamline paperwork and dual 
credit/dual enrollment registration.   
 
Danielle, Carrie, and I have been worked alongside Teale, Mindy, and Erin to plan a 
Dongola High School visit and provide students with an orientation event for their 
Dual Credit initiative.  
 
Worked to plan an Extended Summer Registration which will be Wednesday, June 1 & 
Thursday, June 2, 4:00-6:00 pm, Saturday, June 4, 8:00-12:00, and Monday, June 6, 



Board Book Page 42 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

4:00-6:00 pm.  All locations will be open and offer extended registration hours.  Kevin 
is advertising.  
 
Meeting with SIU Nursing on 05/31 to discuss possible collaboration opportunities.  
 
Recruitment 
The Recruiters/Advisors, Dr. Taylor, and I attended all of the 12 High School Awards 
events and some high school graduation ceremonies.  I am developing a recruitment 
plan that includes a recruitment communication plan for the upcoming cycle.  As of 
05/19, we are up 55% to date in fall applications and up 7.14% in enrollment for fall.  
 
We are working on summer recruitment plans and will be attending several community 
events, carnivals, and fairs.  
 
Picture removed due to Student Names listed 

Color Key 
Monica = purple 
Kyle= blue 
Carrie = orange 
Greg = dark green 
Beth = light green 
Leslie= pink 
Jessica= grey 
Campus Visit = yellow 
Financial Aid= red 
Career= light blue 
 
 
Financial Aid 
Figured Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) for all students receiving Title IV funds 
for the Spring 2022 semester and sent e-mails to each student regarding their status.  
Processed appeals submitted for Summer 2022. 
 
Assisted students in person and through Zoom (when requested) with the 2021-2022 
and 2022-2023 FAFSA.   
 
Attended the NASFAA Webinar on Your Top Ask Regs Questions on May 18.  Attended 
the NASFAA Webinar on the Annual Business Meeting and Policy Update on May 24.   
 
Tammy Capps:  Entered 2022-2023 scholarship amounts on student aide screens and 
printed scholarship certificates for all twelve-district high school award ceremonies.   
 
Mandy Hazel:  Participated in the Policy Review Training on May 11.  Sent offer letters 
for new or updated financial aid packages. 
 
Lisa Meyer:  Made daily adjustments to student scholarship and waiver amounts for 
Spring 2022, Summer 2022, and Fall 2022 classes added and/or dropped and sent 
work-study evaluations to supervisors for Spring 2022. 



Board Book Page 43 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
Registrar 
The Spring 2022 graduation numbers are attached.  Last spring, there were 313 
degrees awarded.  
 
On May 18, Danielle Boyd attended a webinar from the National Student Clearinghouse 
on the new warning codes for reporting. 
 
Danielle Boyd and Dr. Cara Doerr are updating advisement forms and finding a 
centralized location on MYSCC to store them.  
 
Student & Community Outreach – Lindsay Johnson 
 
Anna Extension Center Report 
 
During May, the Anna Center welcomed various events for our community.  On May 2, 
SIUC made a surprise presentation to Anna Center's student, Jessica Cates.  Jessica was 
awarded the Provost Scholarship for SIU.  The Anna Center staff wishes Jessica the 
best in her future endeavors!  On May 5, a Driver Safety course was taught to area 
participants.  Union County's swim team, the Blue Dolphins,  held training and a board 
meeting to prepare for their summer events on May 9 in the conference room.  There 
was a CPR class taught for a local business's employees at the Anna Center on May 11.  
The Union County CEO Board of Directors held a meeting in the conference room on 
May 17.  The Regional Office of Education #30 had a discussion on May 31 at the Anna 
Center.   
 
Cairo Extension Center Report  
 
The Cairo Center has held a Yoga for Seniors class and Food Sanitation class on May 7.  
The Cairo Center partnered with the NAACP to bring the Kidney Mobile, Land of 
Lincoln expungements, Lions Club hearing, vision screening, and Southern Seven (WOW 
van) on May 16 and partnered with U of I to hold a container garden class on May 18.  
The coordinator attended the Cairo High school awards banquet on May 11, 2022, and 
the Meridian High school awards banquet on May 17, 2022. 
 
Metro Extension Center Report  
 
Kyle Smith and Kevin Hunsberger attended the Joppa high school signing and 
welcomed three students to the Saints family.  During Finals week, students were 
provided snacks by the First Baptist Church, Women of the Union Baptist Association, 
and Seven Mile Baptist Church.  The SCC Metro Center held the Drive Safety class on 
May 14, 2022, and 11 students participated.  The Metro Center will offer four summer 
camps from June 13-16; First "Class" Cookies, It's Alive (science camp), Saints Healthy 
Kids 101, and Saints Art Camp. 
 
Vienna Extension Center Report 
 
Shawnee Community College's summer and fall registration dates were organized and 
conducted at Vienna and Goreville High Schools through the Vienna Center 



Board Book Page 44 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Coordinator.  These events resulted in 42 students registering for classes at Vienna 
High School and 24 students at Goreville High School.  These early registrations were a 
combination of graduating seniors and Escrow students.  Greg Sheppard attended the 
monthly Johnson County Business meeting in Vienna.  Partnerships with various local 
community events continue to be planned for the summer and fall. Greg Sheppard 
made arrangements to pick up and distribute caps/gowns for 7 Vienna High School 
Seniors who will graduate from Shawnee Community College this spring.  Schedules 
and sign-up information has been distributed to all Johnson County schools for this 
summer's Kids Camps at Shawnee Community College.  
 
Student Success – Mindy Ashby 
 
Student Success Center (SSC) Professional Math Tutor, John Miller, has retired after a 
long-standing career at Shawnee Community College.  John began his professional 
tutoring career in the SSC in 2010.  As a dedicated higher education professional, John 
committed himself to student success and proved so by assisting students from all 
backgrounds in mathematics.  John was particularly intentional concerning tutoring 
remedial students.  Not only would he emphasize support by meeting students where 
they were, but he provided relatable activities to support students academically 
outside of the classroom.  We will miss John and wish him the best of luck in his 
retirement.  
The Director of Student Success, Director of Recruitment and Enrollment, and 
Coordinator of High School Partnerships and Pathways attended the 2022 Awards 
Ceremony at Vienna High School on May 6, 2022.  Scholarship recipients were 
acknowledged in the Gym.  
 
The Career Services Coordinator, Blake Goforth, has been working with Anna 
Davenport and the SCC Agriculture Program by helping students practice their 
presentations through observation and provide commentary/guidance that would 
ultimately empower students and amplify their projects before their formal 
presentations Friday, April 29, 2022.  The Career Services Coordinator assisted with 
on-site visits from: Vienna High School on April 5, Century High School on April 20, 
Meridian High School on April 28, Egyptian High School on April 29, and Cairo High 
School on May 4.  This included, but was not limited to: speaking to each class about 
their future plans and the services offered by and through the Career Services Office, 
helping with placement testing when needed, giving or helping campus tours when 
needed, and answering questions students had about college majors and careers.  The 
Career Services Coordinator is in the process of entering graduation exit surveys from 
the last two semesters in SurveyMonkey.  The Career Services Coordinator has been 
working with Dr. April Teske to assess the graduation exit survey, six-month survey, 
one-year survey, and five-year survey to collect data that aligns with the College's 
strategic plan initiatives.  The Career Services Coordinator and Director of Student 
Success, Mindy Ashby, met with Pam Barbee and Rita Steele of WIOA to discuss a 
partnership to help SCC students in four main areas: incumbent work training, 
occupational skills training, work experience, and supportive services.  The Career 
Services Coordinator and Executive Director of Public Relations and Marketing, Kevin 
Hunsperger, provided free professional headshots for graduating students on April 27, 
2022, and had four students take advantage of the opportunity.  The Career Services 
Coordinator is involved with the planning of the High School Career Expo and 



Board Book Page 45 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

conducting a career assessment with students who attend.  The Career Services 
Coordinator presented resume and interview tips to the Metropolis Outreach Center's 
speech class on April 28, 2022, and the Medical Assistant class at the Anna Outreach 
Center on May 5, 2022.   
 
Library usage during the first two weeks of May was especially busy.  The study rooms 
were in high demand the week before finals and during finals week.  Monday, 
Wednesday, and Friday, the week before finals week and during finals week, the library 
averaged nine people in study rooms.  On those same days, the library averaged seven 
people at study tables throughout the library. 
  
A majority of loaned equipment was returned.  During the end-of-semester equipment 
returns, library staff could account for 77% of the laptops having been returned, 76% of 
the Jetpacks and 100% of the graphing calculators lent out to students for Spring 2022.  
Students who did not return their equipment by the due date had charges placed on 
their accounts as well as subsequent holds through the SCC Bursar.  Once missing 
equipment has been returned, those charges will be removed.  The library staff 
cleaned, sanitized, and handed that equipment off to the IT Department to have them 
reset and ready for the Summer 2022. 
  
Cecilia Knight, the library assistant, attended two webinars: We Can't Go it Alone: 
Community-Centered Collaborations during COVID-19; and Better Communication in a 
Diverse Workforce.  The "Mindfulness"; "Donut Stress,"; and "Would You Rather" 
bulletin boards in the main hallway, the library, and the lower H hallway, respectively, 
were put together by Cecilia.  She also set up three book displays: one on relaxation 
and mindfulness which was located in the main hallway display case; the second on 
good study habits in the Student Support Services Tutoring Lab; and the third on 
various hobbies and skills in the library.  She completed her Moodle class on MARC 21: 
Standard Training. 
  
Rachel Hannan, the library assistant, finished her Moodle class: MARC 21: Standard 
Training.  She updated the Google Form for students to fill out to request equipment 
and removed Jetpacks from the form.  She also sent out a Google Form to the faculty 
to get ideas on ways that the library may support their instruction for the summer 
semester and beyond.  Rachel attended two webinars: We Can't Go it Alone: 
Community-Centered Collaborations during COVID-19; and Better Communication in a 
Diverse Workforce.  
 
Retention Specialist, Kaylyn Meyers, facilitated testing services for SP22 end-of-
semester makeup exams, the administration of SP22 final exams, as well as 
coordinated with Professional English/Writing Tutor, Marilyn Crites, and SCC library 
staff to provide final exam testing accommodations for qualifying students with 
disabilities.  The Retention Specialist saw an increase in students, particularly student-
athletes, who greatly benefited from one-on-one as well as small-group tutoring and 
final-project completion in the two weeks leading up to finals.  The Retention Specialist 
would like to give kudos to both Kylee Frassato, Student Health Specialist, and Debra 
Baker, work-study student, for their dedication to student success and their 
willingness to step in wherever needed.  On the morning of May 10, 2022, the 
Retention Specialist assisted Erin King, Student Engagement Coordinator, with the 



Board Book Page 46 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

administration of the Quantitative Reasoning, Algebra, and Statistics portion of the 
placement test at Anna-Jonesboro Community High School.  
 
Student Senate – Student Senate sophomore elections were held on April 6, 2022, and 
three sophomores were elected for the 2022-2023 school year.  Freshman elections and 
extension center appointments will be held early in the fall semester.  Planning for 
2022-2023 opportunities is ongoing. 
 
Coordinator of Student Engagement, Erin King, wrapped up the Spring semester 
working alongside members of the SSD as well as other departments in the College.  
The Coordinator of Student Engagement co-coordinated a site visit to Anna-Jonesboro 
Community High School where she administered the math section of the College's 
placement exam to high school juniors wishing to take advantage of dual credit 
opportunities.  The Coordinator of Student Engagement also assisted with summer and 
fall semester registration at Anna-Jonesboro, Vienna, and Massac County high schools.  
She has also assisted with several of the high schools that visited Main Campus, 
including Meridian, Century & Egyptian, which all came to campus to take the 
placement test and took a tour of the facility.  Vienna and Cairo high schools also 
brought groups to visit the Criminal Justice simulator and took a college tour.  The 
Student Engagement Coordinator created the itinerary for the College's Student 
Success Seminar which was held on May 23, 2022.  Students had the opportunity to 
take a tour, listen to speakers, play games, and eat lunch. 
 
The end of the Spring semester has also included some treats on campus for both 
students and staff.  Staff and faculty enjoyed a week of potlucks and activities hosted 
by the Cultural Awareness Team.  Then, on April 6, 2022,  Dr. Taylor hosted "Pizza and 
Bagels with the President," and grab-and-go snacks were provided for students as they 
moved through the week of Final Exams.  Then, of course, Commencement activities 
were the icing on the cake! 
 
Student Health/COVID – Kylee Frassato 
 
As Shawnee College transitions to the summer semester, May was once again a great 
month in terms of the decline in Covid-19 cases for the Southern Illinois area.  The 
spring semester started with a positivity rate of 14.5% and fell to 5.97% by the end.  
The focus of the Covid team this month was to continue to educate the public about 
the importance of routine testing if not vaccinated and to keep the public up to date 
on the newest exposure/quarantine guide.  The students in the Shawnee community 
have done a wonderful job in keeping up with weekly testing, resulting in less than 10 
Covid compliance letters being sent out for the entire month of May.  A total of 1,390 
tests were administered for the Spring 2022 semester, and of those, only 83 were 
positive.  Again, the Shawnee community did an outstanding job of routinely testing 
and quarantining when symptoms showed, and their efforts did not go unnoticed. 
 
Student Affairs – Dr. Lisa Price 
 
The Union County Baptist Association made goodie bags for students to enjoy during 
finals week.  The students were thrilled to have the treats and we are appreciative of 
the service from the association. 



Board Book Page 47 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

Dr. Price has been focusing on budget work, interviewing for a Librarian, CTE 
Education Pathway grant work, and nursing articulation with SIUC 
 
 
Submitted by 

Dr. Lisa Price     
 



Board Book Page 48 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 

 
Full article can be read by visiting   
https://www.week.com/2022/04/29/higher-ed-hopes-budget-increases-lead-more-
students-building-improvements/ 
 
Higher ed hopes budget increases lead to more students, building 
improvements 
By Lizzie Seils  Published: Apr. 29, 2022 at 3:15 PM CDT 
 
SPRINGFIELD (WGEM) - Following mitigations, a continuing pandemic, and a changing 
economy, increased funding for Illinois’ higher education system may do one thing the 
industry is hoping for: bring more students into the classrooms. 
 
According to information from the Illinois Community College Board, fewer students 
have been enrolling in community college each year since 2012. In 2020, 474,478 
students enrolled in community colleges statewide. In 2021, 405,444 enrolled, 
resulting in a 19% decrease. 
 
In contrast, the number of students graduating from community colleges has remained 
the same, averaging over 60,000 per year. That means there aren’t students enrolling 
to replace the number of students graduating out of the community college system. 
 
ICCB Executive Director Brian Durham said the downward trend is a nationwide trend, 
caused by the economy as well as the COVID-19 pandemic. The mitigations and lack of 
in-person learning especially affected community colleges, which rely on hands-on 
learning and vocational training to draw students in. 
 
“You’ve had kind of a downward trend for a while, from a really high peak of about 10 
years ago,” Durham said. 
 
The FY 23 budget is adding $13 million to state community college funds, a 5% 
increase from the previous year. They’re also expanding Monetary Award 
Program grants for students. MAP grants don’t need to be repaid and are available for 
certain eligible students. This expansion would increase who’s eligible, which ICCB 
hopes will draw more people into community colleges. 
 
Under the new budget, students in smaller programs, like those offered at community 
colleges, would be eligible for MAP grants. That opens up financial aid for students 
looking to go into construction, semi-truck driving licenses, or criminal justice would 
be impacted. Overall, ICCB estimates over 2,000 programs would be affected by the 
grant eligibility. Durham hopes that will draw more students into community colleges. 
 

Submitted by James Darden 
Illinois Community College Trustees Association Liaison 
www.communitycolleges.org 
 

https://www.week.com/authors/Lizzie.Seils/
http://www2.iccb.org/iccb/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Annual_Enroll_Comp_2021_Final.pdf
https://www.isac.org/students/during-college/types-of-financial-aid/grants/monetary-award-program/
https://www.isac.org/students/during-college/types-of-financial-aid/grants/monetary-award-program/
http://www.communitycolleges.org/


Board Book Page 49 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

“I think it has the potential to help with enrollment certainly,” ICCB Director Brian 
Durham said. “I think it has really great potential to help low-income students who 
need assistance to access college in a way they didn’t feel like they could before.” 
 
Beyond community colleges, Illinois’ higher education system is seeing a boost in 
funding. For FY23, $54 million more will be allocated to public universities. 
 
Full article can be read by visiting  
 https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.24819.html 
 
Fiscal Year 2023 State Budget Includes Largest Investments in Higher 
Education in Decades 
Historic investments help bolster equity in higher education and expand recruitment and 
retention efforts 
 
SPRINGFIELD, IL - Higher education leaders across the state are celebrating the 
comprehensive FY 2023 state budget recently passed by the Illinois General Assembly 
and signed by Governor JB Pritzker on April 19, which includes a historic higher 
education budget of $2.24 billion – representing a $248.5 million increase from last 
year and the largest increase in over 20 years. This budget will help ensure Illinois 
continues to make meaningful progress towards creating an equitable, sustainable 
higher education system that provides broad paths to a prosperous future for every 
learner, leader, and community in our state. 
  
Among the highlights in the FY 2023 state budget are a $122 million increase in the 
state’s need-based student grants Monetary Award Program (MAP), a $54.8 million (5 
percent) increase in funding for public universities, and a $13.2 million (5 percent) 
increase in funding for community colleges starting in the current fiscal year and 
continuing into FY 2023. 
  
This historic investment in MAP is the largest ever and moves us closer to reaching our 
goal of $1 billion in MAP funding in 10 years. These crucial funds will create more 
opportunities for students attending community colleges by expanding MAP eligibility 
to over 2,000 short-term credit-bearing certificate programs not previously eligible for 
financial aid. Expanding eligibility for MAP grants will also help meet the needs of 
Illinois residents on their journey to economic empowerment, regardless of whether 
their path is job training, an associate degree, or a bachelor’s degree. 
  
Additionally, the budget includes an increase of $2.3 million for the Minority Teachers 
of Illinois (MTI) scholarship to attract more teaching candidates of color to high-need 
schools, and an increase of $535,000 for the Diversifying Faculty Initiative to increase 
minority faculty. 
 
The budget also includes important investments for recruitment and retention efforts 
in health care: $25 million for the Pipeline for Advancement of the Healthcare (PATH) 
Workforce, a new program to expand the health-care workforce through the state’s 
community college system; $10 million for the Behavioral Health Workforce Education 
Center, a new partnership with the Illinois Department of Human Services and higher 

https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.24819.html


Board Book Page 50 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

education to expand the number of behavioral health-care workers; $6 million for new 
scholarship and loan repayment programs for school social workers; and $5 million 
for the new Community Behavioral Health Care Professional Loan Repayment Program. 
These efforts will increase the state’s health-care workforce as we continue to recover 
from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
“Illinois Community Colleges already account for $3.5 billion in economic output and 
more than 43,000 jobs across Illinois. The increased overall funding this year will allow 
our system to create even more opportunities for students no matter where you live,” 
said ICCB Board Chair Lazaro Lopez. 
 
Also noteworthy is the one-time $230 million payment which will eliminate the 
estimated unfunded liability for the state’s pre-paid tuition program, College Illinois!®. 
These funds will bring immediate relief and comfort to the nearly 25,000 contract 
holders who have faced uncertainty about the state’s ability to meet its fiscal 
obligations to participating students and families. The payment will also save the state 
$75 million over the long term. 
 
“Increasing MAP funding to a historic high of $601 million means that the program will 
likely serve all eligible applicants with larger awards—improving the purchasing power 
of MAP and significantly increasing access to higher education for students who might 
not otherwise have thought it was possible,” said ISAC Executive Director Eric 
Zarnikow. “This extensive investment in education, including the supplemental 
appropriation for the College Illinois! Prepaid Tuition Program, reflects the State’s 
commitment to meeting its obligations and working to ensure that every student in 
Illinois has the educational opportunity they deserve.” 
  
Highlights of the fiscal year 2023 budget: 
• $122 million increase in MAP funding, while also expanding MAP to many credit-
bearing programs of less than one year offered through Illinois Public Institutions 
• $54.8 million (5%) increase in funding for public universities through a supplemental 
appropriation starting in fiscal year 2022 and continuing in fiscal year 2023 
• $13.4 million (5%) increase in funding for community colleges through 
a supplemental appropriation starting in fiscal year 2022 and continuing in fiscal year 
2023 and $2.6 million (5%) increase for adult education and career and technical 
education 
• $25 million for the Pipeline for Advancement of the Healthcare (PATH) Workforce, 
a new program to expand the health care workforce and additional $2.8 million to 
encourage and support recruitment and retention of nurse professionals 
• $1.98 million to increase the Diversifying Faculty in Illinois program, expanding the 
number of fellowships to increase the number of minority faculty 
• $2.3 million in additional funding for the Minority Teachers of Illinois Scholarship 
Program to help address the teacher shortage and improve the diversity of the teacher 
workforce 
• $230 million to eliminate the estimated College Illinois! unfunded liability to meet 
commitments to families who pre-paid for college through the program 
• $5 million for City of Chicago Career & Technical Education 
• $5 million for College Bridge grants 
• $5 million for Trade School programs 



Board Book Page 51 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 

 

Shawnee Community College 

Financial Report 

 

 
Ten Months Ended 

April 30, 2022 



Board Book Page 52 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 53 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 54 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 



Board Book Page 55 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 56 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 57 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 58 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 59 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 60 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 61 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 62 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 63 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
       

For the Month of April 2022 
Approval of Bills 

       
FUND      EXPENDITURES 
       
       
Education Fund      $701,396.41 

       
Building Fund      125,950.63 

       
Restricted Bldg. Fund     9,580.47 

       
Bond & Interest Fund     0.00 

       
Auxiliary Enterprises Fund     36,384.67 

       
Restricted Purposes Fund (Grants)    193,911.94 

       
Restricted Purposes - FWS*     1,902.00 

       
Restricted Purposes - PELL     18,831.00 

       
Restricted Purposes - SEOG    0.00 

       
Trust & Agency Fund     3,581.12 

       
Audit Fund      0.00 

       
Liab. Prot. Settlement Fund (TORT)    42,284.66 

       
GRAND TOTAL      $1,133,822.90 
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
_________________________________      _________________________________ 

Chairman  Secretary 
       

   ___________    
   Date    

 
 
 



Board Book Page 64 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 



Board Book Page 65 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 



Board Book Page 66 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 67 

 

 
Return to Agenda   



Board Book Page 68 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 69 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
 



Board Book Page 70 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 
 



Board Book Page 71 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 



Board Book Page 72 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 73 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 74 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 75 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 76 

 

 
Return to Agenda   



Board Book Page 77 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 



Board Book Page 78 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 79 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 80 

 

 
Return to Agenda   



Board Book Page 81 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 



Board Book Page 82 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 83 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 

Interfund Transfer 
Date  Vendor  Amount 

June 6.2022  Shawnee Community College  $55,000.00 
 
From: Fund-16 (Restricted Purpose Fund)  
To: Fund-01 (Education Fund) 
 
Purpose:  To repay inter-fund loan from the Education fund to the Restricted 

Purposes fund. 
     
     
     
     
 Chairman  Secretary  
     
Date: 6.6.2022   
 

 



Board Book Page 84 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Riley Scarbrough 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Kevin Hunsperger 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  Chris Clark 
 RE: Budget Development Presentation – Preliminary Progress Review 
 Date: June 6, 2022 
  

Background: Currently, the College’s FY23 legal budget is entering the 
final stage of completion but is not quite ready for first review.  The 
purpose of this Presentation is to provide the Board with the following 
PRELIMINARY information: 
 

• FY23 Enrollment Projection 
• FY23 Revenue Projection.  
• Operating Fund Expense Review at the Division Level. 
• Operating Fund Expense Review at the Department Level (select 

Departments only). 
• List of assumptions used to build the budget. 
• List of personnel funded. 
• List of Strategic Plan initiatives recommended for funding. 
• List of CQI initiatives recommended for funding. 
• List of Capital Equipment requests recommended for funding. 
• List of Facility projects recommended for funding. 

 
Dr. Teske will lead the Board through the College’s new enrollment 
projection process.  VP Clark, Brad McCormick, and I will present the rest 
of the information.  All four parties will be available to answer questions 
about the process and what is being recommended for funding.   
 
At the conclusion of the Presentation, the Board Finance Committee will 
be asked to schedule a meeting, at some point in mid-June, to review the 
preliminary information in detail, make final recommendations for 
inclusion in the budget, suggest improvements in process, and provide 
direction to the administration so the legal budget can be finalized and 
ready for first-read at the July regular Board meeting.   
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board Finance Committee establish a 
meeting date and time for mid-June.   
 



Board Book Page 85 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Riley Scarbrough 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Kevin Hunsperger 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  Chris Clark 
 RE: Capital Project Application (Formerly RAMP Submission) 
 Date: June 6, 2022 
  

Background: The College, through a submission to the ICCB, requests 
funding from the Illinois Capital Development Board for local construction 
projects. Capital projects for consideration can be categorized by new 
construction, remodeling or rehabilitation of existing facilities, site 
improvements, land acquisition, and/or utility improvements. According 
to Section 1501.510 of the Illinois Community College Administrative 
Rules, the College must submit “Resource Allocation and Management 
Plan (RAMP) data by July 1 of each year.”  
 
The College’s FY23 Capital Project Application contains the same single 
project request from the FY22 (RAMP) application along with an additional 
project.  
 
Specifically, the project from FY22 is to resurface the main campus 
parking lot, to modify sidewalks and roadway access.  
 
The second project includes the renovation of the College’s Biology, 
Chemistry, and Learning Commons labs.   
 
Here is a Summary of the Project details:  
 
Project Title: Main Campus Parking & Roadway Access 
Priority: Number 1 of 2  
Estimated Total Cost: $519,830  
Estimated College Match: $130,000  
Estimated State Contribution: $389,830  
 
Project Title:  Main Campus Lab Renovations 
Priority:  Number 2 of 2 
Estimated Total Cost: $2,475,000 
Estimated College Match: $618,750 
Estimated State Contribution: $1,856,250 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the FY23 Capital 
Project requests and authorize the College’s VP of Administrative Services, 
Chris Clark, to sign and submit the document, as per ICCB guidelines. 



Board Book Page 86 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 
 



Board Book Page 87 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 88 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 89 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 90 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 91 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 



Board Book Page 92 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 93 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 94 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 95 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 96 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Riley Scarbrough 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Kevin Hunsperger 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  Chris Clark 
 RE:  Blanket Purchase Orders over $25,000 
 Date: June 6, 2022 
  

Background: At the start of each fiscal year, the Board has historically 
approved blanket (i.e., open) purchase orders (PO’s) for amounts over 
$25,000. The purpose of these blanket PO’s is to allow for timely 
purchases of miscellaneous supplies, materials, goods, services, utilities, 
lease payments, annual contracts payments, textbooks, etc.   
 
Blanket PO’s are used in situations where purchases are repetitive in 
nature, difficult to quantify over time, and span throughout the fiscal year.  
Open PO’s streamline the purchasing process and helps the College use 
our purchasing staff more efficiently. In addition, blanket PO’s simplify 
the tracking of annual cost, budget allocation, and efficient payment 
processing.  
 
Twenty-three (23) blanket POs, in the total amount of $1,783,910, are 
recommended for FY23.  The list of recommended blanket PO’s is on the 
next the page.  According to College Policy 8153, the Board must approve 
expenditures over $25,000. If approved, these blanket POs will be active 
throughout FY23. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the 23 blanket POs, in 
the amount of $1,783,910, that are identified in the attachment below. 
 



Board Book Page 97 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

FY 2022 
Open Purchase Orders Exceeding $25,000 

 
 

FY2023 Purchase Order Amount 
Ameren - Electricity Anna Center $32,000.00 

Kaplan - Practical Nursing $48,000.00 

Kaplan - Registered Nursing $48,000.00 

Cengage Learning - Books for Resale $50,000.00 

City of Metropolis - Electricity Metro Center $46,500.00 

Clearwave $46,000.00 

Crowdus - Custodial Anna Center $36,760.00 

Crowdus - Custodial Metro Center $36,760.00 

Crowdus - Custodial Cairo Center $18,000.00 

Crowdus - Custodial Main Campus $292,400.00 

Ellucian, Inc - Ellucian Maintenance $100,000.00 

Elsevier Health Science - Books for resale $80,000.00 

Gibbs Technology Leasing, LLC - Copier Lease $35,000.00 

IL Carrico Three - Anna Rental $69,290.00 

Johnson, Schneider & Ferrell, LLC - Legal Services $30,000.00 

MBS Textbook Exchange Inc - Books for Resale $50,000.00 

McGraw-Hill - Books for Resale $40,000.00 

Pearson Education - Books for Resale $33,000.00 

Pick Up Mart $25,000.00 

Smart Transportation $25,200.00 

So IL Electric Coop - Electricity Main Campus $382,000.00 

St. Moritz Security Services - Security Services $235,000.00 

Xerox Corporation - Copier Lease  $25,000.00  

Total $1,783,910.00 
 



Board Book Page 98 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 
 
 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
James Darden 
Steve Heisner 
Michael McMahan 
April Moore 
Deborah Shelton-Yates 
John Windings 
Andrea Witthoft 
 
Student Trustee 
Riley Scarbrough 
 
President 
Dr. Tim Taylor 
 
Vice Presidents 
Darci Cather 
Chris Clark 
Dr. Lisa Price 
 
Executive Directors 
Emily Forthman 
Kevin Hunsperger 
Dr. April Teske 
Dr. Jeffrey Dufour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Board Memorandum 
  
 To: Board of Trustees 
 From: Dr. Tim Taylor 
 Recommending Staff:  Chris Clark 
 RE:  FY22 Audit Engagement Letter 
 Date: June 6, 2022 
  

Background: As noted, at the regular April Board meeting, the Finance 
Committee reviewed the FY22 Audit Engagement Letter (attached) from 
Martin Hood.  At the time, the Finance Committee felt the selection of 
Martin Hood to conduct the College’s FY22 Audit was appropriate.   
 
However, since the Audit Engagement Letter was not received from Martin 
Hood in a timely manner, the Saints Foundation had not had an 
opportunity to review and offer their feedback on the selection process.   
 
Since that time, the Saints Foundation Executive Director, Dr. Jeff DuFore, 
reviewed the Audit Engagement letter with Board of Directors and they 
agree that it would be prudent for the Foundation to use Martin Hood, as 
reflected in the terms of the Engagement Letter, for their FY22 Audit, as 
well.  
 
Finance Committee Chair Windings, VP Clark, and Brad McCormick will be 
available to answer any questions. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend the Board approve the selection of Martin 
Hood for FY22 Audit Services as outlined in the attached Audit 
Engagement letter. 
 



Board Book Page 99 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 

 



Board Book Page 100 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 101 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 102 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 103 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 104 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 105 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 106 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 107 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 108 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 109 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 110 

 

 
Return to Agenda   

 
 



Board Book Page 111 

 

 
Return to Agenda  Return to Executive Session Action  

 


	Word Bookmarks
	Agenda
	Regular Minutes
	Special Minutes
	Student Trustee Report
	Faculty Report
	President Report
	Academic Affairs Report
	Administrative Svc Report
	HR Report
	Institutional Effectiveness Report
	Public Information Report
	Foundation Report
	Student Affairs Report
	ICCTA Report
	Treasurer
	Approval of Bills
	Check Register
	Interfund
	Budget Development
	RAMP
	RAMP Projects
	Blanket Purchase Orders
	Purchase Orders
	Audit Engagement
	Engagement Letter


